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Note from the Chairman
Dear Friends,
As Lloyd Electric & Engineering Limited (LLOYD)
completes two very momentous decades of existence
in the Indian industry, I thought it appropriate to
acquaint you a little better with the organization and
its milestone-peppered journey that spans 20 years.
As is typical of any entrepreneurial start up, Lloyd’s
time line mirrors its roller coaster rise to prominence
and leadership within its chosen niche. It was in 1988
that it kick started the manufacture of Heat
Exchanger Coils for air conditioning and refrigeration
appliances, from a spanking new factory in Bhiwadi,
Rajasthan with machinery from Burroak, USA.
Crafting a pioneering vision
From small acorns grow great Oaks, and that has been
the story of Lloyd. At the outset, Lloyd Electric laid
out a vision for the Company, identifying growth,
high quality, process excellence, innovation and
people as the key spurs that would urge it forward to success. Early in its history, your Company was able
to see the big opportunity in a nascent market, recognize the business potential it could tap and create a
strategic roadmap to become a major player in this segment. Your Company took on the role of a pioneer,
stepping firmly on this unchartered terrain, creating a path for others to follow. The early years were
therefore spent in building the crucial foundation, the state-of-the-art manufacturing infrastructure and
investing in areas such as brand building, product development and delivery.
Building the manufacturing foundation
The factory began by rolling out 300 Coils per day in 1990 and gradually beefing up its capacity to 900
Coils per day by 1994. By 1995 Lloyd Electric was producing 1,500 units per day to emerge as the largest
Coil manufacturer in India. In that year it also began developing air conditioner units for railway coaches.
The manufacturing capacity once again took a giant leap in year 2000, when it was expanded to 3,500
coils a day in tune with fresh market requirements. That was a time when the Government gave its famous
“globalize or perish” call, exhorting industry captains to push for exports and establish the Country’s
competitiveness in the world markets. It was a crucial year for the Company as it joined other domestic
market majors in reaching out to new markets and emerging geographies.
Over the years, your Company continued to grow its capacity as well as market share in India and overseas,
building a second manufacturing facility in Kala Amb in the state of Himachal Pradesh in the year 2004
to support its scaling operations and more diversified product portfolio. Kala Amb in fact, was established
to manufacture Window and Split Air Conditioners and boasted a capacity of 120,000 sets per annum
with integrated manufacturing of Coils and tubing. By 2005, the manufacturing capacity of air conditioners
had jumped to 300,000 per annum.

Today, the Kala Amb Factory is a major pillar in the organization’s growth saga. The operationalization of
this ultra-modern plant has led to remarkable results and will enable Lloyd to achieve new heights.
At the same time, a large inflow of outsourced orders for producing window and split air-conditioners for
some branded players, has also led to the expansion of capacity of the Himachal Pradesh unit and caused
Lloyd to set up a new AC manufacturing plant in Uttaranchal.
In 2008, Lloyd’s railways initiative has additionally become a substantial business for the Company which
is currently executing an order for Delhi Metro. The fact that it has a first mover advantage in this segment,
and the fact that the Metro is adding nearly 800 new coaches to its fold, is expected to result in a sizeable
opportunity. At the same time, it may lead to Lloyd providing cost competitive air conditioning solutions
to metro rail coaches in other developing countries and enhancing its export potential.
Performance improvements, year-on-year
Over the decade, keeping pace with the infrastructure investments, Lloyd also improved its performance
year-on-year. The steady increase of momentum found reflection in the expanding top line, robust
profitability statistics, improving processes and growing market share, both on home turf and internationally.
Revenues witnessed a sharp upward climb, increasing from Rs. 1439 Million in 2002-03 to Rs. 4966 Million
in 2006-07. In 2007-08, the Company has notched up a turnover of Rs. 6721 Million, at a healthy and
above industry growth rate of 35 percent. Its deep relationships with leading domestic and MNC air
conditioner manufacturers in India and the ability to generate repeat business, have all contributed to this
impressive annual report card.
In 2008, Lloyd Electric & Engineering can state with confidence that it has delivered on all counts—
achieving its yearly goals, enhancing productivity and efficiency, improving customer responsiveness and
meeting the expectations of all its stakeholders. Its ability to tune to market realities and dynamic customer
needs has also catalyzed its performance and its strategic initiatives in the areas of product innovation and
manufacturing process improvement.
Backed by a comprehensive yet variegated product mix—which encompasses Heat Exchangers, Rail Coach
Air conditioning units, and Window/split air conditioner- it has emerged as a one-stop shop and an endto-end solutions provider within the air-conditioning domain.
Towards Quality and process excellence
The quest for quality has always remained high on the Lloyd agenda, and your Company has imposed
stringent controls to ensure that its products meet all global standards and benchmarks. While it was in
1998 that it was assessed for the ISO 9002 standard, it was four years later, in 2002 that the fully integrated
facility manufacturing finned and tube type Heat Exchangers, bagged the ISO 9000 certification and later
in 2005 the UL certification. Owing to this quality focus, Lloyd has emerged as the OEM supplier to almost
all AC manufacturers in India. Its growing list of customers in the world markets, also stands testimony to
the strides it is making in the quality realm. In the last few years, it has been able to expand its footprint to
cover markets such as the Middle East, Australia, Asia and Africa. The traction achieved in these regions
is a result of its high-quality offerings, which are a big competitive advantage and differentiator. Quality,
blended with engineering expertize and technological skills developed over the last decade, have helped
Lloyd create a “human-machine nexus,” committed to excellence.
Besides quality, your Company has also been focusing on well formulated internal control systems and
processes, with definite roles and responsibilities at all levels of operations.

Deepening customer relationships
Drawn by its quality culture and global-class offerings, a host of Indian and international companies in the
air conditioning space have become Lloyd’s customers. By enhancing their experience, and delivering a
higher value to them, it has managed to build long term relationships with organizations that are leaders
within their domains. Repeat business from customers has ensured that the order books are always full.
More a partner, than a vendor for its clients, your Company has been able to raise its customer satisfaction
to new levels over the years. Its marquee clients include reputed names in the Indian domestic market such
as Samsung, LG Electronics, Carrier, Haier, Voltas Limited, Blue Star, the Indian Railways. Globally the
products are supplied to Emerson Dubai, UAE; Venticlima and Italy.
The People-centric Company
People are the core strength of Lloyd, the engine that drives its growth and enables it to deliver higher
value to customers. Armed with this relevantly skilled asset with domain strengths, it has been improving
internal productivity levels by 30 percent over the past five years. Engineering graduates (that make up
almost 20 percent of the resource base) are employed across all functions and supported by other equally
qualified and experienced technical staff.
The aim of Lloyd is not just to draw the best talent with the highest expertize, but also to retain these
people in an industry scenario where attrition is the norm. Its effort, to provide a conducive environment
for the employees to unleash their creativity and pursue personal and professional goals, has helped the
Company to emerge as a preferred career destination. One-on-one relationships between workers and key
managers has helped obliterate hierarchies and strengthened team spirit. When people join Lloyd Electric,
they not only have a career path defined for them, they are also integrated into the process of continuous
learning. The emphasis on training across all levels of the organization ensures that employees remain
abreast of the latest technology and business trends and equipped in terms of skills, to work on cuttingedge platforms.
Innovation and Technology absorption
Innovation lies at the center of the Lloyd Electric universe. By fostering a climate of innovation and ensuring
that it is part of the organizational DNA, it had been able to create products that are out-of-the-box and
path-breaking. Recognizing the importance of innovation and the role of technology in driving innovation
in the workplace, your Company has deployed new-tech within itself to leverage its immense benefits.
Almost as far back as 2002, the directors of your Company invested in a new fin making machine which
was double the capacity than what was available in the market at that point of time. To facilitate the
manufacture of new design Coils, it invested in a equipment and special software, which helped to innovate
better quality, lower priced coils that provided the same efficiency levels, at lower run times.
Strategic Acquisition - 2008
Based on its significant year-on-year growth, your Company is looking to widen its wing span and carve
a niche for itself in the global Coil manufacturing industry. Besides organic growth and a forceful showing
of numbers, your directors are also looking at gaining momentum through inorganic means. A major step
in this direction has already been taken place with the acquisition of Luvata Czech s.r.o., through its
special purpose vehicle (SPV) Lloyd Coils Europe. Luvata Czech, a Prague-based manufacturer of
customized finned pack Heat Exchangers is having sales of 30.5 million and is serving the heating
ventilation, air conditioning and refrigeration (HVAC&R) requirements of customers across Europe. With
this move, your Company has acquired Coil manufacturing facilities in the Continent, which will enable it

to address the larger business opportunity in the attractive, regulated, high growth finned pack Heat
Exchanger market in the region.
Needless to say, we are extremely excited about this acquisition and intend to leverage the Czech Company’s
excellent track record, wealth of experience, expertize and vast customer base, including several large
HVAC&R OEMs as well as smaller clients, in this business segment. With this acquisition, your Company
is likely to attain an attractive position in the fragmented European Coil market and thereby grow its
business in the Continent. The acquisition is likely to lead to significant business synergies, especially in
controlling costs, technology absorption and direct access to several major central European markets. It
will also consider further investments to tap the growth potential of Luvata Czech.
The “Green” outlook
Going Green and energy conservation, the big buzzwords today, were among Lloyd’s important priorities
even in the early days. Over the years, your Company has been constantly upgrading its technology with
a view to save energy. Recognizing the criticality of doing this, it has been developing new types of condensers
and evaporators where the rate of heat transfer has considerably increased. This has enabled it to attain
the desired temperatures at a much faster rate, cut off the compressor within a lesser running time and
thereby save power.
Improvement in energy efficiency in fact, is a continuous process at Lloyd and conservation of energy is
given a high priority in all its plants and offices. Monitoring and operating air conditioner plants, water
pumps and other accessories; optimum utilization of distribution and test bed transformers; and installation
of electrical load managers for monitoring energy consumption, are some of the important measures which
it has adopted on a regular basis.
The Road Ahead
In the years ahead, your Company is looking at emerging as the world’s Number One Heat Exchanger
Coils manufacturer and a globally admired Company. It is also the Company’s goal to enhance shareholder
value by achieving profitable growth in scalable, high-end businesses, expanding international operations
and achieving operational excellence through effective talent management. In line with these targets, your
Company is strengthening its organizational capabilities and embracing Best Practices to work on global
prospects in the institutional, industrial and Government domains.

A new world of opportunity is opening before Lloyd,
and your Company is aiming for the stars.
With Regards,
Brij Raj Punj
Chairman & Managing Director
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NOTICE
Registered Office: A-146, (B&C)
RIICO Industrial Area,
Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar,
Rajasthan-301 019
NOTICE is hereby given that 21st Annual General Meeting of Lloyd Electric & Engineering Limited will be held on Monday,
September 29, 2008 at 4:00 P.M. at A-146 (B & C), RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan for transacting
the following business(s):
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2008 and the Profit and Loss Account for
the year ended on that date and the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.

To declare the dividend for the Financial Year 2007-2008.

3.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sandeep Sethi who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

4.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. K.Lall, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

5

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an "Ordinary
Resolution".
"RESOLVED THAT M/s Suresh C. Mathur & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company, who
retires at the conclusion of this meeting, be and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2008-09, to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as may be agreed by the Board of Directors/ Committee thereof,
including out-of-pocket and traveling expenses."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
6.

To re-appoint Mr. Brij Raj Punj, as Managing Director for a further period of 5 years
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 198, 269, 310 read with Schedule XIII and all other
applicable statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (including any modification (s) or re-enactment thereof, for
time being in force) the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded and is deemed to have been so accorded
to the re-appointment of Mr. Brij Raj Punj as Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 5 (five years) with
effect from 31st October 2008, on the terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in the Explanatory
Statement annexed to the notice convening this meeting, with the liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred
to as "the Board" which term shall deemed to include any committee of the Board constituted to exercise its power,
including the powers conferred by this Resolution) to alter and vary the terms and conditions/ or remuneration, subject
to the same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956 or any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof.
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper
or expedient to give effect to this Resolution."
By order of the Board of Directors

Place: New Delhi
Dated: August 27, 2008
2

Anita K.Sharma
Company Secretary

NOTES
1.

The relative Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the business
under Item No. 6 is annexed hereto. The relevant details as required by clause 49 of the Listing Agreements entered
into with the Stock Exchanges, of persons seeking re-appointment as Directors under Item no. 3, 4 and 6 are also
annexed.

2.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER
TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DULY STAMPED, COMPLETED AND SIGNED AND MUST REACH TO THE
COMPANY AT A -146, (B&C), RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, BHIWADI, DISTT. ALWAR, RAJASTHAN NOT LESS THAN
FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

3.

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send a
certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, September
25, 2008 to Monday, September 29, 2008 (both days inclusive).

5

The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared at the meeting will be payable to those members
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on September 25, 2008; in respect of shares held
in dematerialized form, the dividend will be paid to members whose names are furnished by National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited as beneficial owners as on that date.

6

Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, if there is any change in their registered address. Demat Shareholders
should inform the change of address to their respective Depository Participants.

7

Members are requested to bring their Attendance Slip along with their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting.

8

Members are requested to send their Queries, if any, on the Accounts and Operations of the Company to the Company
Secretary atleast 10 days before the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

9

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205 A(5) and 205 C of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has transferred the
unpaid or unclaimed dividends uptill the financial years 1996-97 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
established by the Central Government.
Dividends for the financial year ended March 31, 2006 and thereafter, which remain unpaid or unclaimed for a period of
7 years from the date they became due for payment will be transferred by the Company to IEPF. Information in respect
of such unclaimed dividends and last date for claiming the same are provided in the Corporate Governance Report
forming part of the Annual Report. Members who have not so far encashed dividend warrant(s) for the aforesaid years
are requested to seek issue of duplicate warrant(s) by writing to the Company or RTA immediately.

10 Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of
names are requested to send the share certificates to the Company's Registrars and Share Transfer Agent,
M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited for consolidation into a single folio.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
Item No. 6
Mr. Brij Raj Punj has been serving as Managing Director of the Company since October 31, 2003. The term of office of
Mr. Brij Raj Punj as Managing Director of the Company shall expire on October 30, 2008.
The present proposal is to seek the members' approval for the re-appointment of and remuneration payable to Mr. Brij Raj
Punj as Managing Director, in terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Board of Directors of the Company ( the "Board"), at their meeting held on August 27, 2008 has, subject to the approval
of the Members, re-appointed Mr. Brij Raj Punj for a further period of 5 years from the expiry of his term, on the remuneration
determined by the remuneration committee of the Board at its meeting held on August 27, 2008.
Mr. Brij Raj Punj upon re-appointment shall continue to hold office of the Chairman and Managing Director.
Broad particulars of the terms of re-appointment of and remuneration payable to Mr. Brij Raj Punj are as under:
Mr. Brij Raj Punj: Chairman and Managing Director
(a) Salary, Perquisites and Allowance
Particulars

Per month (Rs.)

Salary

1,50,000

Perquisites & Allowance

1,00,000

The perquisites and allowances, as aforesaid shall include accommodation (furnished or otherwise) or House rent allowance
in lieu thereof; house maintenance allowance together with re-imbursement of expenses and /or allowances for utilization of
gas, electricity, water, furnishing and repairs; medical re-imbursements; leave travel concession for self and family including
dependents ; club fees, medical insurance and such other perquisites and/ or allowances. The said perquisites and allowances
shall be evaluated, wherever applicable, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 or any other rules thereunder or any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof; in the absence of any such rules, perquisites and allowances shall be
evaluated at actual cost. However, the Company's contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation or Annuity Fund, to the
extent these singly or together are not taxable under the Income Tax Law, and gratuity payable and encashment of leave at
the end of the tenure, as per the rules of the Company and to the extent not taxable under the Income tax Law, shall not be
included for the purpose of computation of the overall ceiling of remuneration. Further, Employees Stock Options to be
granted if any, from time to time shall not be included for the purpose of the computation of the overall ceiling of remuneration.
(b) Commission:
As may be decided from time to time by the board/ committee of the directors, subject to the overall ceiling of 1% of the net
profits of the Company, computed in the manner laid down in Section 309 (5) of the Companies Act, 1956.
(c) Reimbursement of Expenses
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for traveling, boarding and lodging; provision of car(s) for use on company's business
and telephone expense at residence shall be reimbursed and not considered as perquisites.
The above remuneration payable to Mr. Brij Raj Punj, Managing Director is subject to the condition that the total remuneration
including commission and all the perquisites as mentioned above shall not exceed 5% of the net profits for such director,
and if there is more than one such director, 10% for all them together in accordance with Section 198 and 309 of the Act, or
any amendment thereto or any other provisions as may be applicable.

4

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, where in any financial year, during the currency of the tenure of
the appointee, the Company has no profits or profits are inadequate, the Company will pay salary and perquisites and
allowances as specified above.
The terms and conditions of the said re-appointment may be altered and varied from time to time by the Board as it may, in
its discretion, deem fit, within the maximum amount payable to Managing and Whole Time Directors in accordance with
Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956 or any amendments made hereafter in this regard.
The resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Brij Raj Punj as Managing Director, requires approval of the company in general
meeting pursuance of Section 198, 269, 309 and 311 read with Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Company has achieved a phenomenal growth under his leadership. Your directors recommend the resolution set out
at item no. 6 of the notice for your approval by way of ordinary resolution.
None of the directors except Shri Brij Raj Punj is interested in the aforesaid resolution.
The explanatory statement read with the proposed resolution may be treated as an abstract of the terms of re-appointment
and memorandum of interest under Section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Details of Directors Seeking appointment/ Re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting
(Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreemenrt)

Mr. Brij Raj Punj
Mr. Brij Raj Punj is an Engineering Graduate from Brunell University of United Kingdom and possess vast experience of
more than three decades in the air conditioning and refrigeration industry. Aged about 63 years, Mr. Punj is serving the
Company in the capacity of Chairman & Managing Director and is also actively involved in framing of its long term policies
and plans. He is also a Chairman & Managing Director of Fedders Lloyd Corporation Limited and also on the Board of
following Companies, namely- PSL Engineering Pvt. Ltd; Perfect Radiators & Oil Coolers Pvt. Ltd.; Airserco Pvt. Ltd; Regal
InformationTechnology Pvt. Ltd.; Lloyd Sales Pvt. Ltd.; Lloyd Infotech (India) Pvt. Ltd.; Lloyd Credits Ltd.; Pt. Kanahya Lal
Punj Pvt. Ltd.; Punj Technology Pvt. Ltd.; Punj Services Pvt. Ltd.; Lloyd Manufacturing Pvt. Ltd.; Punj Software Solutions
Pvt. Ltd.; Punj Softech Pvt. Ltd.; Punj Software Technology Pvt. Ltd.; Lloyd Builders Pvt. Ltd.; Himalayan Mineral Waters
Pvt. Ltd.; Lloyd Developers & Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Punj is also a member of Share Transfer /Investor Grievance Committee and sub-committee of Fedders Lloyd Corporation
limited
As on March 31, 2008, Mr. Punj holds 867270 equity shares representing 2.80% in the paid-up capital of the Company. He
is not related to any directors of the Company.
Mr. Sandeep Sethi
Mr. Sethi, age around 43 years has been serving as a Director of the Company since May 1996. He holds master degree in
Law. Mr. Sethi is a Senior Advocate practicing in Delhi High Court and has gained an insight into various aspects of Indian
Corporate Law, Mergers and Acquisition, Arbitration etc.
Directorship held in other public Companies: NIL
Memberships/ Chairmanships of committees of other public companies (includes Audit Committee and Shareholders/
Investor Grievance Committee): NIL
No. of Equity Shares held in the Company: NIL
5
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Mr. K.Lall
Mr. K.Lall, age around 64 years has been serving as a Director of the Company since 2002. Mr. Lall is a FCS and CWA and
possess a vast professional experience of over 37 years in the field of financial and corporate matters such as investment
banking, corporate finance, business restructuring, legal and commercial laws etc.
Directorship held in other public Companies: Fedders Lloyd Corporation Ltd; Vishwas Securities Ltd.; Arjun Industries Ltd.
and Lloyd Credits Ltd.
Memberships/ Chairmanships of committees of other public companies (includes Audit Committee and Shareholders/
Investor Grievance Committee): Mr. Lall chairs the Audit Committee and Share Transfer/ Investor Grievance Committee of
Fedders Lloyd Corporation Ltd.
No. of Equity Shares held in the Company: NIL
By order of the Board of Directors

Place: New Delhi
Dated: August 27, 2008

6

Anita K.Sharma
Company Secretary

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Members,
Your Directors are pleased to present the 21st Annual Report along with the Audited statement of accounts of your Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2008.
Rs. In Lacs
FINANCIAL RESULTS
2007-2008
2006-2007
Total Income

66989.80

49657.69

Profit before Interest, depreciation and taxation

8145.40

6503.53

Interest

1003.98

573.68

923.37

848.65

6218.05

5081.20

932.50

774.60

13.82

11.00

5271.73

4295.60

72.71

2.49

1229.53

-

30.00

-

Less: Short provision for Restructured liability

1229.53

-

Amount available for appropriation

5314.45

4298.09

310.00

620.01

52.68

105.37

4900.00

3,500.00

51.76

72.71

Depreciation
Profit before tax
Provision for Taxation (Current and Deferred)
Fringe Benefit Tax
Profit after tax for the year
Balance brought forward from previous year
Amount transferred from General Reserve
Less: Tax for earlier years

Proposed Dividend
Tax on proposed dividend
Transfer to General Reserve
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
During the year under review, the total income of the Company rose to Rs. 66990 Lacs from Rs. 49658 Lacs, indicating an
impressive growth of 35 percent. The Profit before depreciation and interest rose from Rs. 6504 Lacs in the previous year to
Rs. 8145 Lacs during the year under review.
The net profit after provision for taxation rose from Rs. 4296 Lacs to Rs. 5272 Lacs during the year under review. Earning per
share for the year stood at 17.01 as against 13.86 in 2006-07.
OPERATING PERFORMANCE
Your Company is the largest manufacturer of Heat Exchanger Coils in India and is an OEM supplier of evaporator and
condenser Coils to almost all airconditioner makers in the country. The Company is manufacturing 400 varieties of Coils.
Your Company recorded another year of excellent growth with all the business segments performing well. During the year,
Lloyd expanded the spectrum of its customers to include companies involved in precision air conditioning. This was in
addition to the company's existing client base of regular air conditioner manufacturers. Instead of focusing on "seasonal"
players in the air conditioning industry, the company addressed customers with all-year-round business. The Railway
7
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business and Bus air conditioners, both new opportunity areas for Lloyd contributed significantly to the Company's annual
turnover.
EXTENDING THE GLOBAL FOOTPRINT-OUR STRATEGIC ACQUISITION IN 2008
Besides organic growth, your Directors also focused on spurring the momentum of the Company through inorganic means.
To gain a strong foothold in the Eurpoean markets, recently, your Company acquired Luvata Czech s.r.o. in Prague, Czech
Republic through its Special purpose Vehicle (SPV) Lloyd Coils Europe (Originally named Lloyd Coils Czech) Luvata
Czech, is a leading manufacturer of Finned Pack Heat Exchangers (Coils) serving the heating, ventilation, air conditioning
and refrigeration (HVAC&R) requirements of customers throughout Europe. The Company is strategically located in Radotin
(within the greater Prague area) and the facility has made headway in key Eurpoean markets due to its low cost production
and short delivery times.
The Company announced the acquistion on May 13, 2008, subsequent to the balance sheet date, which is why the
consolidated financial statements and other documents of the new subsidiary are not being attached with the Annual Report
of the Company.
With this acquisition, your Company has acquired Coil manufacturing facilities in the Continent, which will enable it to
address the larger business opportunity in the attractive, regulated, high growth Finned Pack Heat Exchanger market in the
region.
CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the year under review, the forfeiture of 400 equity shares was nullified by the company on receipt of proper particulars
of having paid the allotment money due thereon. As a result thereof, the paid up capital of the Company stands increased
from Rs. 309998600 to Rs. 310002600 i.e. 31000260 equity shares of Rs. 10- each fully paid-up.
In order to finance the long-term working capital requirement, strategic acquisitions and expansion plans, and for general
corporate purposes, your Company issued and allotted 50,00,000 warrants on September 11, 2007 on preferential basis to
entities in the promoter/non-promoters group at Rs. 225 each, to be converted into an equal number of equity shares of Rs.
10 each at a premium of Rs. 215 per share on exercise of the option of conversion by the warrant holders within 18 months
from the date of the allotment of warrants in accordance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Disclosure and Investor Protection) Guidelines, 2000. The company has received Rs. 1125 lacs towards 10 percent of
deposit against the aforesaid preferential warrants. The balance 90 % shall be payable on the date of conversion at the
option of the warrant holders. The funds had been utilized for the purpose for which it has been raised.
During the year under review the authorized share capital of the company was increased from Rs. 35,00,00,000 to Rs.
50,00,00,000 divided into 5,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.
DIVIDEND
Keeping in view the Company's need for capital for its growth plans and the intent to finance the same through internal
accruals, your Directors are pleased to recommend for approval of the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
a dividend of 10 percent for the financial year 2007-2008. (last year 20%)
TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVES
In accordance with statutory provisions, your Company has transferred a sum of Rs. 4900 Lacs to the General Reserves.
GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS (GDR)
396000 Global Depository Receipts underlying 792000 equity shares are outstanding for conversion as on March 31, 2008.
The GDRs are listed and traded at the London Stock Exchange. The Bank of New York acts as the Depository and ICICI
Bank as the domestic custodian in respect of GDRs issued.
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FIXED DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted any Fixed deposits as per section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and Rules made
thereunder.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Your Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the attainment of the highest levels of transparency,
accountability and equity in all facets of its operations and interactions with its stakeholders including Shareholders,
Lenders and Regulatory Authorities. Your Company has complied with all the recommendation of the Corporate Governance
code as provided in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the stock exchanges.
A separate section on Corporate Governance, together with a certificate from the Company's Auditors confirming compliance,
is set out separately in this Report.
DIRECTORS
Mr. Sandeep Sethi and Mr. K.Lall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A brief profile of these Directors is provided in the notice of the ensuing AGM.
The present tenure of Mr. Brij Raj Punj as Managing Director will expire on October 30, 2008. The Remuneration Committee
and the Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 27, 2008 considered and approved the re-appointment of Mr. Brij
Raj Punj as Chairman and Managing Director for a further period of 5 years w.e.f. October 31, 2008 subject to the approval
of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
None of the Directors are disqualified under Section 274 (1) (g) of the Companies Act, 1956.
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
Industrial Relations remained cordial throughout the period under review. IR initiatives were continuously undertaken to
enhance productivity, maintain harmonious relations with and improve the quality of the workforce.
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS
Particulars of employees as required under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure
of Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 are set out in the Annexure and form part of the Report.
AUDITORS
The Statutory Auditors M/s Suresh C. Mathur & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi who retire at the conclusion of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. Your Company has received a
certificate from the proposed Auditors stating that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the limits prescribed under
Section 224 (1B) of the Companies Act, 1956.
THE OBSERVATIONS OF THE AUDITORS
The notes to accounts forming part of the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2008 and the Profit and Loss Accounts for the
year ended on that date, referred to in the Auditors Report are self explanatory and therefore do not call for any further
comment U/s 217(3) of the Companies Act 1956.
LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES/GDR
The equity shares of your Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The GDRs are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The Annual Lisitng Fees for 20072008 have been paid to the above stock exchanges.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The information as required u/s 217 (1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars
in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules 1988, regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo are given in Annexure A to this Report.
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Directors would like to inform the members that the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2008 are
in full conformity with the requirement of the Companies Act, 1956. The Directors hereby confirm that:
a)

In preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed.

b)

The accounting policies have been consistently applied, and reasonable, prudent judgments and estimates made so
as to give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year, and of the profits of the
Company for that period.

c)

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company, and for providing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities.

d)

The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Directors acknowledge the continued support and cooperation received from shareholders, customers, suppliers,
dealers, financial institutions and banks, regulatory and government authorities.
The Board also wishes to record its sincere appreciation of the commitment, dedication and hard work put in by every
member of the Lloyd family.
For and on behalf of the Board

Place: New Delhi
Dated: August 27, 2008
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Brij Raj Punj
Chairman & Managing Director

ANNEXURE A TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Information pursuant to Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars
in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are as follows:
A.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Conservation of energy continues to be high priority for existing as well as new projects. Lloyd has always been the front
runner in any activity that helps in environment protection and provides better products to customers at the same cost.
During 2007-08, Lloyd became the first company to develop Heat Exchangers for use in Star Rated air conditioners, a new
generation of products that are highly energy efficient and save power significantly.
In house conservation of electricity also remained high on the Company's agenda and Lloyd Electric opted for machines that
were fired using alternate means of energy in place of electricity. These machines, like the recently installed boiler, are as
efficient as the ones using conventional electrical energy.
B.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORBTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

i) Efforts made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation
Absorption and adaptation of the latest technology has been extremely important for the Company. Your Company continued
to build its pool of highly qualified and experienced technical experts, who came up with innovative ideas that were implemented
in production, design and other engineering activities.
Lloyd strengthened its R&D facilities during 2007-08 in order to provide a wider range of products to suit customers’ needs.
This also enabled the Company to create energy efficient equipment, widen its export opportunities, undertake import
substitution and adapt imported technology to suit the Indian market. Training was imparted to technical staff as an ongoing
process.

ii) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts
The Company was able to produce energy efficient, environment friendly air-conditioning systems and equipment, expand
its range of products, improve quality and product design and reduce costs.

iii) Imported technologies were successfully absorbed resulting in improved quality, reduction in rejections and better value
to customers. The Company is monitoring the process of technology adoption on a regular basis. In fact, it is an ongoing
process and the Company endeavors to adopt innovative measures for technology absorption and adaptation in the years to
come.
iv) Expenditure incurred for R&D
R&D has played an important role in the growth of Lloyd, with your Company consistently introducing technological innovations
in its Heat Exchangers, to provide greater value to its customers. During 2007-08, therefore, the Company worked on
creating alternate designs of Heat Exchangers which were lower in cost but as efficient as the earlier products. The Coils
were developed, tested in the Company's lab (which has all the latest instruments for maintaining required conditions) and
then taken to the customer for approval, before the commencement of supplies.
Owing to this kind of Value Addition and Value Engineering (VAVE), Lloyd Electric was able to maintain its position as the
market leader, gain a competitive edge and attract additional customers during the year under review.
Capital Expenditure

:

Taken as Fixed Assets and depreciation is provided accordingly.

Revenue Expenditure

:

Charged out as expenses through the respective heads of account.
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C

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Foreign Exchange earned
Foreign Exchange Outgo

D

12

:
:

Rs. 1173 Lacs
Rs. 3105 Lacs

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 217 (2A) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 READ WITH COMPANIES (PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES) RULES, 1975 FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2008
S.
No.

Name of
Employee

Age

Designation

Gross
Remuneration
(Rs.)

Qualification

Experience
(No. of years)

Date of
Joining

Last
Employment

1

Mr. A.K. Roy

58 years

Whole Time
Director

43,72,000

B.E.
(Mechanical)

36

6.09.1996

Escorts
Tractor Ltd.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 2008
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS
The Indian Air conditioning market stood at 21 Lacs units during the year under review with the growth rate touching around
22 percent year-on-year. The market is expected to sustain momentum this year as well. An increase in disposable
incomes in urban India, including smaller cities, fuelled the demand for air conditioners during 2007-08. The residential air
conditioner segment witnessed a shift from Window ACs to split ACs. While the window segment recorded sales of 8.6
Lacs units, around 12.4 Lac units of split ACs were sold during the year, accounting for around 60 percent of the revenues
generated by the market. The trend was catalyzed by the fact that the price differential between a window AC and a split AC
narrowed greatly.
Your Company has built up a strong presence in the area of AC's contract manufacturing and is an OEM supplier for well
known brands. Your Company's performance is not effected by price volatility of copper tubes and aluminium foils due to its
ability to pass on the impact of raw material costs.
During the year under review, your Company has made an operating profit (profit before depreciation, interest and tax) of Rs.
8145 Lacs as against Rs. 6504 Lacs in the previous year ended March 31, 2007. The net profit after tax during the year
under review stood at Rs. 5272 Lacs as against Rs. 4296 Lacs during the previous year.
COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE
Buoyed by economic growth within India and outside the country, the Company notched up a robust performance in 20072008. Being a market leader in India in the manufacture of Coils, the Company is looking to widen its horizons with a strong
global presence and create its niche in the global Heat Exchanger market worldwide. The Company's strategy is to grow
organically as well as inorganically. Recently, your Company acquired Luvata Czech s.r.o. in Prague, Czech Republic
through its Special purpose Vehicle (SPV) Lloyd Coils Europe. Luvata Czech with a turnover of 30.5 Million, is the leading
manufacture of Finned Pack Heat Exchangers (Coils), serving the heating, ventilation, air conditioning and refrigeration
(HVAC&R) need of customers across Europe. The acquisition is expected to lead to significant business synergies in terms
of cost efficiencies, technology absorption etc.
Your Company aims at enhancing shareholders value by achieving profitable growth in scalable high-end businesses,
expanding international operations, achieving operational excellence and through effective talent management.
The Company's business strategy includes innovation of new technology and adoption of modern and sophisticated techniques
in the area of manufacturing. It is also focused on building its brand equity, improving quality and thereby, increasing its
earning potential.
FUTURE OUTLOOK
India is poised to achieve higher economic growth, and your Company is also setting higher performance goals for itself in
the future. Leveraging its acquisition of Luvata Coils, Lloyd will emerge as a global player in the coil manufacturing industry.
It will also achieve traction in the European market through Luvata Czech's strong customer base in the Continent.
RISKS MANAGEMENT
Risk may be defined as the possibility that an event will occur and adversely affect the achievement of Company's objectives
and goals. A business risk is a threat that an event or action will adversely affect an organization's ability to achieve its
business objectives/targets. Risk Management is a structured, consistent and continuous process, applied across the
organization for the identification of risks, control assessment and exposure monitoring.
In the course of its business your Company is exposed to a variety of market and other risks including the effects of demand
dynamics, currency exchange rates, and interest rates as well as financial issues, hazard events and specific asset risks.
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Wherever possible, your Company uses the instrument of insurance to mitigate risk. Macro-economic factors like a slowdown,
unforeseen political and social upheavals and natural calamities, may affect the Company as other organizations within the
Indian Industry.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
Your Company has proper and adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size and nature of the business
and covering all financial and operating functions.
MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
People are the core strength of Lloyd, the engine that drives its growth and enables it to deliver higher value to its customers.
The year 2008 was eventful for the people of Lloyd, with the company embarking on its exciting journey of expansion and
acquisition.
Today, Human Resource is positioned as an important contributor to the company's growth, a pillar that will enable your
Company to differentiate itself in the market on the basis of rightly skilled talent. The emphasis on training and continuous
learning across all levels of the organization ensure that employees remain abreast of the latest technologies and business
trends and are equipped in terms of expertise, to work on cutting-edge platforms.
Industrial relations at all the Company's work and plants remained cordial throughout the year.
DISCLAIMER

Statement in this "Management Discussion and Analysis" describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates,
expectation or predictions may have "forward looking statement" within the meaning of applicable securities laws and
regulations. Actual Performance may differ substantially and materially from those express or implied.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE at Lloyd has been a continuous journey and your Company is constantly striving to achieve
higher levels of transparency, integrity, fairness, accountability, and commitment to values, while adopting Best Practices.
Your Company believes that corporate governance is not just about drafting a code of conduct but practicing it. Its goal
therefore is to ensure that all its actions enhance shareholder value over a sustained period of time.
The Company complies with the requirements of the revised guidelines on corporate governance stipulated under Clause 49
of the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPOSITION
The Board of Directors of the Company ("the Board") represents an optimum mix of professionalism, knowledge and
experience and includes Executive and Non Executive Independent Directors. As on March 31, 2008, the Board of Directors
was constituted by six Directors, of which four were Non-Executive Independent. The composition of the Board is in
conformity with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the stock exchanges.
None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees
across all the Companies in which he is a director. Necessary disclosures regarding committee positions in other public
companies as on March 31, 2008 have been made by the directors.
BOARD MEETINGS
During the Financial Year 2007-2008, Five (5) Board Meetings were held i.e. on April 28, 2007; July 28, 2007; August 30,
2007; October 27, 2007; January 31, 2008. The Last Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on September 29,
2007.
The particulars of Directors, their attendance and other directorships and Committee Chairmanships/ Memberships for the
financial year 2007-2008 are given below:
Name

Category

Attendance
Board
Meeting

Last
AGM

Particulars of directorships/ Committee
Memberships/ Chairmanships
Directorships***

Committee
Memberships@

Committee
Chairmanship@

Mr. Brij Raj Punj

Chairman &
Managing Director

5

Yes

2

2

-

Mr. A.K. Roy*

Whole Time Director

3

Yes

-

-

-

Mr. K.Lall

Non-Executive
Independent Director

5

No

4

-

4

Mr. Sandeep Sethi

Non- Executive
Independent Director

-

No

-

2

-

Mr. S.K. Sharma

Non- Executive
Independent Director

5

No

-

1

-

**Mr. Sanjay Behari

Nominee-IFCI

#5

No

2

1

-

*
**
#
***
@

Appointed as Additional and Whole Time Director w.e.f. 28th April 2007
Ms. Rashmi Sachdev has been appointed as nominee director of IFCI in place of Mr. Sanjay Behari w.e.f. 26th April, 2008 pursuant to the
withdrawal of the nomination of Mr. Sanjay Behari by IFCI.
includes board meeting attended by Nominee director/ observer of IFCI Ltd.
excludes directorships in Private Ltd. Companies and Foreign Companies.
only covers Memberships/Chairmanships of Audit Committee and Shareholders/ Investor Grievance Committee.
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None of the Non-Executive Directors has any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.
Audit Committee
Composition:
The Audit Committee of the Board is constituted by three Independent Non-Executive Directors, including Mr. K.Lall, Chairman,
and Mr. Sandeep Sethi and Mr. S.K. Sharma, as members. All members of the Audit Committee possess financial/accounting
expertize. The Composition of the Audit Committee meets with the requirements of Section 292A of the Companies Act
1956, and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
Ms. Anita K. Sharma is the Secretary of the Audit Committee.
Objective: The purpose of the Committee is to oversee the overall accounting and financial reporting process of the
Company, the audits of the Company's financial statements, the appointment, independence and performance of the statutory
auditors, the performance of internal auditors and the Company’s risk management policies.
Terms of Reference: The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as under:
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O

Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statements reflect a true and fair position and that sufficient and credible information is disclosed.

O

Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and also approval for payment for
any other services.

O

Discussion with the external auditors before the audit commences, of the nature and scope of the audit as well as postaudit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

O

Reviewing the financial statements and draft audit report, including quarterly/half yearly financial information.

O

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board focusing primarily
on:
1

any changes, in accounting policies and practices;

1

major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management;

1

qualifications in the draft audit report;

1

significant adjustments arising out of audit findings;

1

the going concern assumption;

1

compliance with accounting standards;

1

compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements,

1

any related party transactions in accordance with the Accounting Standard 18.

O

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.

O

Reviewing with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control
systems.

O

Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow ups thereon.

O

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into the matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

O

Reviewing the Company's financial and risk management policies.

O

Carrying out such other function as may be specifically referred to the committee by the Board of Directors and/ or other
Committees of Directors of the Company.

Meetings
Five Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year. The meetings were held on 28.04.2007, 27.07.2007, 30.08.2007,
27.10.2007 and 31.01.2008. Necessary quorum was maintained at all meetings.
Attendance of each Member at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year:
Name

Category

No. of Meetings during the year 2007-2008
Held

Attended

Mr. K. Lall, Chairman

Independent, Non Executive

5

5

Mr. Sandeep Sethi

Independent, Non Executive

5

2

Mr. S.K. Sharma

Independent, Non Executive

5

5

III

Remuneration Committee:

Terms of Reference:
The Company is transparent about the compensation policy of Directors. The Remuneration committee of the company
sets the overall policy on remuneration and other terms of employment of the Executive Directors of the Company as well
as the sitting fees to the non-Executive Directors.
Composition and Attendance
The composition of the remuneration committee and their attendance at the meeting held during the year ended March 31,
2008 is as under:
Name of Members

Status

No. of Meetings attended
(Total Meeting held 1)

Mr. S.K. Sharma*

Independent Non-Executive

1

Mr. K.Lall

Independent Non-Executive

1

Mr. Sandeep Sethi

Independent Non-Executive

1

*Designated as the Chairman of the Committee.

Details of Directors' Remuneration

Executive Directors
The Executive Directors are paid remuneration duly approved by the shareholders of the Company and in accordance with
the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The tenure of their appointment is in general, 5 years at a time. They
are paid remuneration, which are duly recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the shareholders in
the subsequent Annual General Meetings.
During the financial year ended March 31, 2008, the aggregate value of salary, perquisites and allowances paid to the
Managing Director and the Whole Time Director is as follows: Mr. Brij Raj Punj, Rs. 7.20 Lacs and Mr. A.K. Roy, Rs. 43.72
lacs, Total Rs. 50.92 Lacs.
The Company does not have any stock option scheme.
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Non Executive Directors
The Non Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of Rs. 5,000 for attending each meeting of the Board. Apart from receiving
directors remuneration (i.e. sitting fees), the non-executive independent directors do not have any material pecuniary
relationships or transactions with the Company during the year ended March 31, 2008
The details of amount paid as sitting fees to Independent Non-Executive Directors during the year ended March 31, 2008:
Name of Directors
Mr. K. Lall
Mr. Sandeep Sethi
Mr. S.K. Sharma
Mr. Sanjay Behari-Nominee IFCI Ltd.

Total (Rs.)
25,000
25,000
*25,000

* Sitting fee paid to the institution, which the nominee director represents
(iii) SHARE TRANSFER AND INVESTORS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of the committee is to approve the transfer/ transmission of physical equity shares of the Company
lodged with the Company/ Share Registrar and also to consider and approve all matters concerning issue of duplicate share
certificates and new certificates on split/consolidation etc. The committee also reviews the mechanism for the redressal of
shareholders and Investors' complaints like non receipt of warrants for declared dividend, non-receipt of balance sheet,
transfer of shares and other related matters.

Composition
Name of the Member
Mr. K.Lall
Mr. Brij Raj Punj
Mr. Sandeep Sethi

Category/Position
Chairman
Member
Member

Meeting
The committee meets at least thrice a month to consider all matters concerning transfers/transmission of shares, issue of
duplicate share certificates and new certificates on split/ consolidation etc. During the year ended March 31, 2008, the
committee met Thirty Six (36) times.
Compliance Officer
Ms. Anita K. Sharma, Company Secretary continued to act as "Compliance Officer" for complying with the requirement of
SEBI Regulations and the listing agreement executed with Stock Exchanges.
Redressal of Investor Grievance
During the financial year 2007-2008, the company received 41 complaints from various Investors'/Shareholders' relating to
the non-receipt of Dividend/ Change of bank account details/Annual Report/ Transfer of Shares/Dematerialization etc. All the
complaints were attended to promptly and resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholders. No investor complaint was
pending as on March 31, 2008.
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SUB- COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS
The Company has constituted a Sub-Committee of the Board of Directors, i.e. a standing committee for taking some
decisions of a routine and urgent matters which cannot wait till convening of next Board Meeting. The committee consists
of three Directors namely, Mr. Brij Raj Punj, Chairman and Managing Director, Mr. K.Lall and Mr. S.K. Sharma as members.
The committee meets at regular intervals to decide upon matters of urgent and routine nature, to support the functioning of
the Board of Directors in an efficient way. All the decisions of the committee are placed before the Board in its next meeting
for noting and ratification.
GENERAL BODY MEETING
(i) Location and Time for last three Annual General Meetings were:
Financial Year

Date & Time

Venue

2006-2007

September 29, 2007 at 9.00 a.m.

Regd. Office : A - 146 (B & C), RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi,
Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan.

2005-2006

September 30, 2006 at 9.00 a.m.

Regd. Office : A - 146 (B & C), RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi,
Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan.

2004-2005

September 5, 2005 at 9.00 a.m.

Regd. Office : A - 146 (B & C), RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi,
Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan.

(ii) The last Extra Ordinary General Meetings were held as under:
Financial Year

Date & Time

Venue

2007-2008

August 27, 2007 at 9.00 am

Regd. Office : A - 146 (B & C), RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi,
Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan.

b) Special Resolution
No Special Resolution was passed in the last three Annual General Meetings
The Following special resolutions were passed in the last Extraordinary General Meeting
1. Further issue of equity shares or other convertible securities to Qualified Institutional Placement pursuant to Chapter
XIII-A of the SEBI (DIP) Guidelines 2000
2. Authority to the board to issue and allot preferential warrants on convertible basis in accordance with SEBI (DIP)
Guidelines 2000.
No resolution has been passed by postal ballot in the last financial year. Also no special resolution is proposed to be
conducted through postal ballot at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
[Note: The following ordinary resolutions are proposed to be passed through postal ballot process.
i) Increase in borrowing limits of the Board of Directors u/s 293(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 to Rs. 2000 Crores
ii) To mortgage/charge the properties of the Company u/s 293(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 1956
The notice of the postal ballot along with the postal ballot form has been despatched to the shareholders. The result shall be announced on
October 16, 2008 at the registered office of the Company at 11.00 a.m.]

DISCLOSURES
(i) There were no material significant related party transactions with the promoters, directors, the management, subsidiaries
or relatives that could have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Details of all related party transactions
are disclosed in the Notes to Accounts.
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(ii) There were no instances of non compliance by the company. Similarly no penalties or strictures were imposed on the
company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other Statutory Authority on any matter related to capital markets during
the last three years.
(iii) The company has formulated risk management in its procedures itself. It regularly analyses the risks and takes
corrective action for managing/mitigating the same.
(iv) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards and relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and are based on historical cost convention.
(v) During the year under review, the Company had issued 50,00,000 warrants on preferential basis on September 11, 2007
to entities in promoter/non-promoter group in accordance with the SEBI (Disclosure and Investor Protection) Guidelines
2000. These warrants are convertible within a maximum period of 18 months from the date of allotment, into an equal
number of fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 215 per share at the option of the warrant holders.
NON MANDATORY REQUIREMENT
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement relating to Corporate
Governance. Few non-mandatory requirements such as constitution of a Remuneration Committee have been adopted by
the Company.
CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The
code of conduct is available on the web-site of the Company (www.lloydengg.com)
All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. A declaration
signed by Chairman and Managing Director of the Company to this effect is enclosed at the end of this report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
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Half yearly report sent to each household
shareholders

No. Company is publishing the results in National and Regional
newspapers.

Quarterly results are normally
Published in

Quarterly Results are published in Pioneer (Delhi),
Adhikar (Jaipur) and also in Economic Times
(Mumbai and Pune).

Any web-site, where displayed

Results are uploaded on www.sebiedifar.nic.in and results are
sent to all the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company
are listed, for uploading on their own web-site.

Whether it also displays official news
releases and the presentations made to
Institutional Investors or to the analysts

sent to stock exchanges for posting on their website

Whether Management Discussion &
Analysis report is a part of Annual
Report or Not

Yes

Whether Shareholder Information
Section forms part of the Annual Report

Yes

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
The Certificate from Chief Executive Officer/ Managing Director and Chief Finance Officer for the financial statements for the
2007-2008 is annexed at the end of this report.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Annual Report and is provided separately.
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION
a)

Annual General Meeting
Date

September 29, 2008

Time

4.00 PM

Venue

Regd. Office : A - 146 (B & C), RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan.

b)

Book Closure Dates: Thursday September 25, 2008 to Monday September 29, 2008 (both days inclusive)

c)

Dividend Payment date: On or after October 3, 2008

d)

Financial Year: April to March of each year

e)

Financial Calendar (Tentative)
Financial Reporting for the quarter ending June 30, 2008
Financial Reporting for the quarter ending September 30, 2008
Financial Reporting for the quarter ending December 31, 2008
Financial Reporting for the quarter ending March 31, 2009
Financial Reporting for the year ending March, 2009
Annual General Meeting for the year ended March 31, 2009

f)

July 29, 2008 (actual)
Before the end of October 2008
Before the end of January 2009
Before the end of April 2009
Before the end of August 2009
Before the end of September 2009

Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE). Shares underlying GDRs are listed on London Stock Exchange.
g)

Payment of Listing Fees

Annual listing fees for the year 2008-2009 (as applicable) has been paid by the Company to BSE, NSE and London Stock
Exchange.
h) Custodial Fees to Depositories
The Company has paid custodial fees for the year 2008-2009 to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) on the basis of number of beneficial accounts maintained by them as on March
31, 2008.
i)

Stock Code/ Symbol
BSE
NSE
LSE
ISIN No.

:
:
:
:

517518
LLOYDELENG
LLD
INE245C01019
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Overseas Depository (for GDRs): The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, New York, USA
Domestic Custodian (for GDRs): ICICI Bank Limited, Mumbai
J)

Stock Market Price Data at BSE and NSE for the year 2007-2008
Month

K)

BSE
High
(Rs.)

Low
(Rs.)

High
(Rs.)

Low
(Rs.)

April' 07

160.50

132.00

162.70

131.50

May' 07

173.90

145.25

173.25

147.00

June' 07

187.70

148.50

189.90

142.50

July' 07

224.00

150.50

238.90

173.50

August' 07

207.00

175.00

207.90

179.95

September' 07

208.00

174.00

207.00

175.00

October'07

190.00

140.00

194.00

151.00

November'07

195.00

160.00

189.00

141.70

December'07

220.35

170.00

252.00

170.05

January'08

221.50

114.85

220.00

117.00

February'08

145.00

111.05

144.90

111.00

March'08

123.00

89.25

123.70

89.05

Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2008
No. of Shares held of
Rs.10 each
Upto

500

No. of
Shareholders

%age of Total

No. of Shares

%age of Total

13953

91.69%

1751153

5.65%

501

- 1000

606

3.98%

490447

1.58%

1001

- 2000

295

1.94%

444637

1.43%

2001

- 3000

95

0.62%

244791

0.79%

3001

- 4000

57

0.37%

200058

0.65%

4001

- 5000

37

0.24%

172493

0.56%

5001

- 10000

70

0.46%

476088

1.54%

10001 & above

104

0.68%

27220593

87.81%

15217

100.00%

31000260

100.00%

Total
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L)

Shareholding Pattern as on March 31,2008
Category

A.)Promoter's holding
Promoters
- Indian Promoters
- Foreign Promoters
Persons acting in concert

Sub-total

:

B.)Non-Promoters Holding
1. Institutional Investors
Mutual Funds and UTI
Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies
Financial Institutional Investor

Sub-total

:

2. Non-Institutional Investors
Private Corporate Bodies
Indian Public
NRIs/OCBs
Any Other
Shares held by Custodians & Against
which Depository Receipts have been issued.
Sub-total
GRAND TOTAL

:
:

No. of shares
held

Percentage of
shareholding

9924655
-

32.01%
-

9924655

32.01%

2051060
4650
9550550

6.62%
0.01%
30.81%

11606260

37.44%

4126022
4234549
287686
29088

13.31%
13.66%
0.93%
0.09%

792000

2.55%

9469345

30.55%

31000260

100.00%

M) Share Transfer System
The Company's Equity Shares are compulsorily traded on the Stock Exchanges in dematerlized mode. Shares in physical
mode which are lodged for transfer are processed by Share Transfer Agent of the Company namely, M/s. Skyline Financial
Services Pvt. Ltd., and despatched within the stipulated time. In case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are
processed by NSDL/CDSL through the respective Depository Participants.
In terms of Clause 47C of the Listing Agreement executed with Stock Exchanges, a practicing Company Secretary has
been appointed by the Company to examine the records and the procedure pertaining to transfer of shares and thereafter
issues a half yearly certificate which is sent to the Stock Exchanges.
In compliance of a requirement prescribed by SEBI, a Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed by the Company
for conducting Secretarial Audit on quarterly basis for reconciliation of total issued share capital with those listed with
depositories and those in physical form.
N) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity
The Shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading on both the
Depository Systems in India, the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL).
As on March 31, 2008 approximately 72.30 percent shares have been dematerialized.
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O) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on
Equity.
The outstanding GDRs are backed by underlying equity shares which are part of the existing paid-up capital of the Company.
396000 GDRs underlying 792000 equity shares of the Company are outstanding as on March 31, 2008. Each GDR represents
two underlying equity shares.
P) Unclaimed Dividend
Under the Companies Act, 1956, dividends unclaimed for a period of seven years statutorily gets transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the Central Government, and therefore cannot be claimed by the
investors. The unclaimed dividend upto the financial year 1997 had been transferred to the IEPF and hence no claim shall lie
with the Company in respect of the same.
The dividend for the following years remaining unclaimed for seven years will be transferred by the Company to IEPF
according to the Schedule given below. Shareholders who have not so far encashed their dividend warrant(s) or have not
received the same are requested to seek issue of duplicate warrant(s) to the company confirming non-encashment / nonreceipt of dividend warrant(s). Once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to IEPF, no claim shall lie in respect of the same.
Financial Year

Date of declaration

Due date for transfer to IEPF

2005-2006 (interim)

February 7, 2006

February 2013

2005-2006 (Final)

September 30, 2006

September 2013

2006-2007 (Final)

September 29, 2007

September 2014

OTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
i)

Addresses for Correspondence from Shareholders for queries/complaints if any:

a)

Ms. Anita K. Sharma
Company Secretary
159, Okhla Industrial Estate
Phase-III, New Delhi-110 020
Ph: +91 11 40627200/300
Fax: +91 11 41609909
Email: investor.relation@lloydengg.com

For the convenience of our investors, the Company has designated an exclusive e-mail ID for investors i.e.
investor.relation@lloydengg.com
b)

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA)
Skyline Financial Services Private Limited,
246, First Floor, Sant Nagar,
Main ISKCON Temple Road, East of Kailash
New Delhi-110 065
Ph.: 011 26292682, 83
Fax: 011 26292681
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ii)

Plant Locations

The Company has its manufacturing plant at the following location:
Domestic
a)

A - 146, (B & C),
RIICO Industrial Area,
Bhiwadi, District Alwar,
Rajasthan-301 019

b)

Industrial Area,
Kala-Amb, Trilokpur Road,
Sirmour, Nahan
Himachal Pradesh

c)

C-1/1, Industrial Area,
Selakui, Dehradun,
Uttranchal

Overseas
d)

(Owned by new subsidiary)
Prague-5, Radotin
Vrazaska 143
Postal Code 15300

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE
To
The Members of Lloyd Electric & Engineering Limited
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Lloyd Electric & Engineering Limited
for the year ended on March 31, 2008 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with
the stock Exchanges.
The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements
of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing
Agreement.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
For Suresh C. Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Brijesh C. Mathur
Partner
M.No. 83540
Place: New Delhi
Date: August 27, 2008
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DECLARATION
To the Shareholders of Lloyd Electric & Engineering Limited
Sub: Compliance with the Code of Conduct

The Board has laid down a code of conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company, which is
posted on the Website of the Company. The Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with
the Code of Conduct.

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 27, 2008

Brij Raj Punj
Chairman & Managing Director

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certification
The Board of Directors of Lloyd Electric & Engineering Ltd.
Dear Sirs,
Sub: CEO/CFO Certificate
(Issued in accordance with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)
We have reviewed the financial statements, read with the cash flow statement of Lloyd Electric & Engineering Limited
for the year ended March 31, 2008 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that;
1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading
2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
2007-2008 which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company's code of conduct.
4. We accept responsibilities for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit
Committee those deficiencies, of which we are aware, in the design or operation of the internal control systems and
that we have taken the required steps to rectify these deficiencies.
5. We further certify that:
G

there have been no significant changes in internal control during this year.

G

There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year

G

There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, of
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system.
Yours sincerely
Mukat Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 27, 2008
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Brij Raj Punj
Chairman & Managing Director

AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The Members,
Lloyd Electric & Engineering Limited.
We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of LLOYD ELECTRIC & ENGINEERING LIMITED as at March 31, 2008 and
also the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.
1.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from any material misstatement. An audit includes, examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

2.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government in Terms of subsection (4A) of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

3.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in the Paragraph 2 above we report that a)

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b)

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c)

The Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of accounts;

d)

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

e)

On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2008, and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2008 from being
appointed as a Director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

f)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts
read together with the Significant Accounting Policies and notes thereon give the information required by the
Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India;
i)

in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2008;

ii)

in the case of the Profit & Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

iii)

in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

for SURESH C. MATHUR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Dated: August 27, 2008

(BRIJESH C. MATHUR)
PARTNER
M.No.: 83540
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ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 OF OUR AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2008 OF LLOYD ELECTRIC & ENGINEERING LIMITED
On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms on the information and explanations given to us,
we state that
1.

The company has maintained records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of the Fixed
Assets. As per information given to us, the management has verified the Fixed Assets physically. We understand
that no discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

2.

The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management and in our opinion the frequency of
verification is reasonable. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the procedures of
physical verification of stock followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business. The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies
noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared to the book records were not material and have been properly
dealt with in the books of accounts.

3.

According to the information given to us the Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured from Companies,
firms, or other parties listed in the Register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company
has granted net Rs. 2321.93 lakhs to Company, Firms listed in the register maintained u/s 301 of the Companies Act,
1956.

4.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control
procedure commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchases of
inventory, fixed assets and with regard to the sale goods. During the course of our audit no major weakness has been
noticed in the internal controls.

5.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are transactions made in pursuance
of contracts of arrangements entered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and
exceeding the value of rupees five lakh in respect of any party during the year have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

6.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public therefore the provision of Section 58A and 58AA of the
Companies Act, 1956 are not applicable to the Company.

7.

In our opinion, the Company has internal audit system, commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature
of its business.

8.

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records u/s 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act 1956 for
the products of the Company.

9.

According to the records of the company and information and explanations given to us, the Company has been regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory
dues with the appropriate authorities during the year.
As on March 31, 2008 according to the records of the Company the following dispute matter is pending before
appropriate authority:
Nature of dues

Income Tax

28

Amount (Rs in lacs)

39.37

Period to which
the amount
relates
A. Y.-2005-06

Forum where
dispute is
pending
CIT (Appeal)

10. The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not incurred any cash loss
during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediate preceding financial year.
11. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues of financial institution / bank. The Company does not have any
outstanding debenture.
12. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced to us,
the Company has not granted loans or advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and
other securities.
13. In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 4(xiii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.
14. In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the
Company.
15. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the terms & conditions of the guarantees
given by the Company for loan taken by the associate companies from bank are prime facie not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.
16. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long term, investment and no longterm funds have been used to finance short term assets.
17. According to the Cash Flow Statement and records examined by us and according to the information and explanations
given to us, on overall basis, funds raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long
term investment and vice versa.
18. During the year, since the Company has not issued any debentures, paragraphs 4(xix) of the order is not applicable.
During the year, the restructuring of IFCI loan had been accounted by the Company. The ZRTL (Zero Rate Term Loan)
arrived from interest overdues and NPV (Net Present Value) loss thereon of Rs.1229.52 lacs had been accounted by
the Company during the year under review. This liability had been met from General Reserves of the Company.
19. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year. In term of approval of shareholders
of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 27, 2007 and as per the applicable statutory
provision of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Disclosure and Investor Protection) Guidelines, 2000, the company
on September 11, 2007 has issued and allotted 50,00,000 warrants on preferential basis to entities in promoter/nonpromoters group at Rs. 225/- each to be converted into equal number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium
of Rs. 215/- per share on exercise of the option of conversion by the warrant holders within 18 months from the date
of the allotment of warrants . The Company has received Rs. 1125 lacs towards 10% of deposit against the aforesaid
preferential warrants and the same is shown as Equity Share Warrants in the Balance Sheet, pending exercise
thereof.
20. During the year, the Company has not raised any money by way of public issue.
21. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements
and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.
for Suresh C. Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Place: New Delhi
Dated: August 27, 2008

( BRIJESH C. MATHUR )
Partner
M.No.: 83540
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2008
(Rs. in lacs)

PARTICULARS

SCHEDULE

As at
31.03.2008

As at
31.03.2007

SOURCES OF FUNDS:
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
Share Capital
A
Equity Share Warrant (Note - 4(b), Sch. - S)
Reserves & Surplus
B

3,100.67
1,125.00
30,877.88

35,103.55

3,100.65
26,843.25

29,943.90

LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

C

TOTAL

15,359.29
330.05

11,023.09
570.16

50,792.89

41,537.15

APPLICATIONS OF FUNDS:
FIXED ASSETS

D

Gross Block
Less: Depreciation
Net Block
Capital Work in Progress

22,445.10
5,261.85
17,183.25
2,209.50

INVESTMENTS

E

19,392.75

17,114.83
4,338.48
12,776.36
2,005.92

483.87

14,782.27
260.77

CURRENT ASSETS, LOAN & ADVANCES
Inventories
Sundry Debtors
Cash and Bank Balances
Loan and Advances

F
G
H
I

11,838.53
16,134.92
7,101.49
3,588.78

8,193.77
10,956.34
10,416.11
2,805.60

38,663.71

32,371.82

5,524.17
2,223.26

4,171.18
1,721.53

7,747.44

5,892.71

Less :
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities
Provisions

J
K

NET CURRENT ASSETS
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE

30,916.27

26,479.11

-

15.00

50,792.89

41,537.15

L

(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
TOTAL
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
S
Schedules A to S annexed form an integral
part of accounts and are duly authenticated.
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As per our Report Attached
For Suresh C. Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

(Brijesh C. Mathur)
Partner
M.No. 83540
Place: New Delhi
August 27, 2008

Brij Raj Punj
Chairman & Managing Director
Mukat Sharma
Chief Finance Officer

Anita K. Sharma
Company Secretary

A. K. Roy
Whole Time Director

K.Lall
Director

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2008
(Rs. in lacs)

PARTICULARS

SCHEDULE

INCOME:
Sales
Less:Excise Duty
Other Income

Year ended
31.03.2008

67,216.48
715.02
M

Total
EXPENDITURE:
Materials Cost
Manufacturing Expenses
Administrative Expenses
Selling Expenses
Finance Charges
Misc. Expenditure Written Off
Depreciation

N
O
P
Q
R

Total
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Less:
Provision for Taxation
Deferred Tax for the year (Refer Note-8, Schedule-S)
Fringe Benefit Tax

66,501.45
488.35

Year ended
31.03.2007
49,732.14
647.76

49,084.38
573.32

66,989.80

49,657.69

56,392.23
469.81
1,653.17
177.09
1,141.07
15.00
923.37

41,782.40
356.40
707.01
190.28
676.75
15.00
848.65

60,771.75

44,576.49

6,218.05

5,081.20

787.50
145.00
13.82

946.32

675.00
99.60
11.00

785.60

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAX

5,271.73

4,295.60

Balance brought forward from previous year
Amount transferred from General Reserve

72.71
1,229.53

2.49
-

6,573.97

4,298.09

Less:
Tax for earlier year
Short provision for Restructured liability (refer note-6, Sch.-S)
AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

30.00
1,229.53
5,314.45

4,298.09

APPROPRIATIONS
Proposed Dividend
Tax on Proposed Dividend
Transfer to General Reserve
Balance carried to Balance Sheet

310.00
52.68
4,900.00
51.76

620.01
105.37
3,500.00
72.71

17.01

13.86

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (refer note-9(L), Sch.-S)
Notes forming part of the Accounts
Schedules A to S annexed form an integral part
of accounts & are duly authenticated.

S

As per our Report Attached
For Suresh C. Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

(Brijesh C. Mathur)
Partner
M.No. 83540
Place: New Delhi
August 27, 2008

Brij Raj Punj
Chairman & Managing Director
Mukat Sharma
Chief Finance Officer

Anita K. Sharma
Company Secretary

A. K. Roy
Whole Time Director

K.Lall
Director

31

Annual Report 2007-2008

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AS AT
31.3.2008
(Rs. in lacs)

AS AT
31.3.2007
(Rs. in lacs)

5,000.00

3,500.00

3,101.32

3,101.32

3,100.03

3,099.99

0.65

0.67

3,100.67

3,100.65

SCHEDULE - A
SHARE CAPITAL:
1)

Authorised Capital:
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
(Previous year 350,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

2) Issued & Subscribed Capital:
3,10,13,160 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
3) # Paid up Capital:
3,10,00,260 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
(Previous year 3,09,99,860 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each )
Add: Equity Shares forfeited
(amount originally paid up )
TOTAL

# Notes:
1. Out of the above equity shares
a) Include 40,00,000 Equity Shares alloted during the year 2006-07 on conversion of warrants issued on preferential basis
in the year 2005-06
b) Includes 92,00,000 underlying Equity Shares representing 46,00,000 Global Depository Receipts issued during the year
2005-06.
c) During the year 2006-2007 the Company had forfeited 13,300 equity shares due to the non-payment of allotment money.
During the year under review, the Board of Directors had annulled the forfeiture of 400 equity shares on receipt of payment
advise by the shareholders and accordingly 400 equity shares had been restored back. Subsequent to the annullification
of forfeiture, the paid-up capital stands increased to Rs. 310002600 i.e. 31000260 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paidup.
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AS AT
31.3.2008
(Rs. in lacs)

AS AT
31.3.2007
(Rs. in lacs)

RESERVES AND SURPLUS:
1) Capital Reserve
(subsidy received against fixed assets)

15.00

15.00

2) Revaluation Reserve
(land revalued as on 31st March, 1993)

35.00

35.00

SCHEDULE - B

3) Securities Premium Account:
Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Add: Premium received on conversion of
preferential convertible warrants
4) General Reserve
Opening balance
Add:Deferred Tax Liability Written back
Less: Amount transferred to Profit & Loss A/c
Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss a/c
5) Profit & Loss Account
As per Profit & Loss Appropriation A/c

17,583.74
9,136.80
385.11
9,521.91
1,229.53
8,292.38
4,900.00

12,983.74
17,583.74

4,600.00

17,583.74

13,192.38

5,636.80
5,636.80
5,636.80
3,500.00

9,136.80

51.76

72.71

30,877.88

26,843.25

1. Term Loans
From Financial Institution/ Banks

5,641.71

5,797.94

2. Working Capital Loans:
From Banks

9,595.89

5,122.94

121.68

102.21

15,359.29

11,023.09

TOTAL
SCHEDULE - C
SECURED LOANS:

3. Loan against Vehicles
TOTAL

Notes:
1. Term Loans are secured by the creation of first mortgage and charge on all the immovable and movable assets, present
and future of the Company. (subject to the charge on specified movable assets created/ to be created in favour of the
Company's bankers by way of security for working capital requirements. The restructuring of IFCI Loan has been
accounted by the Company. The ZRTL (Zero Rate Term Loan) arrived from interest overdues and NPV loss thereon had
been accounted during the year under review.
2. The working capital loans, fund based as well as non fund based from banks are secured by way of first hypothecation
charge on the stocks/ book debts, both present and future and second charge on pari-passu basis on the fixed assets
of the Company.
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SCHEDULE- D
FIXED ASSETS:
(Rs. in Lacs)
PARTICULARS

GROSS BLOCK

DEPRECIATION

AS AT ADDTIONS DEDUCTIONS
AS AT
01.04.2007
31.3.2008

34

NET BLOCK

UP TO FOR THE YEAR ADJUSTMENT
31.3.2007

UP TO
AS AT
31.3.2008 31.03.2008

AS AT
31.03.2007

1)

Leasehold Land

63.65

-

-

63.65

-

-

-

-

63.65

63.65

2)

Temporary Constructions

11.97

-

-

11.97

11.97

-

-

11.97

-

-

3)

Buildings

880.92

131.49

-

1,012.42

148.60

32.43

-

181.03

831.39

732.32

4)

Plant & Machinery

15,671.75

5,038.39

- 20,710.14

3,963.54

844.91

-

4,808.45

15,901.69

11,708.21

5)

Office Equipments

147.09

23.87

-

170.97

115.00

3.99

-

118.99

51.98

32.09

6)

Vehicles

308.39

119.23

-

427.62

92.53

39.38

-

131.90

295.72

215.86

7)

Furniture & Fixtures

31.05

17.28

-

48.33

6.84

2.67

-

9.50

38.82

24.21

TOTAL

17,114.83

5,330.26

- 22,445.10

4,338.48

923.37

-

5,261.85

17,183.25

12,776.36

(Previous Year)

12,236.56

4,883.74

5.47 17,114.83

3,493.95

848.65

4.12

4,338.48

12,776.36

8,742.61

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
Face
Value

Number of
Shares
(Rs. in lacs)

AS AT
31.3.2008

Number of
Shares
(Rs. in lacs)

AS AT
31.3.2007

2
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
1
10

375
25
5
1,000
16,600
24,200
25,600
16,900
400
125
25
3,850
5,124

0.13
0.04
0.01
0.20
1.66
0.16
7.68
1.69
0.04
0.76
0.09
4.63
11.12

375
25
5
1,000
16,600
24,200
25,600
16,900
400
125
25
3,850
5,124

0.13
0.04
0.01
0.20
1.66
0.16
7.68
1.69
0.04
0.76
0.09
4.63
11.12

10
10
10
5
10
10
1
10
1
10
10

4,600
500
200
210
30
50
2,458
100
500
125,000
30,000

2.68
0.21
0.00
0.05
0.03
0.06
20.89
0.00
0.06
190.93
32.17

4,600
500
200
210
30
50
2,458
100
500
-

2.68
0.21
0.00
0.05
0.03
0.06
20.89
0.00
0.06
-

SCHEDULE - E
INVESTMENTS (LONG TERM)
Quoted Shares
Blue Star Ltd.
Blue Star Info. Ltd.
Castrol (India) Ltd.
Chambal Fertilizers & Chem. Ltd.
D.B. International Brokers Ltd.
Dot Com. Global Ltd.
Shardul Securities Ltd.
ACE India Ltd.
Fortis Financial Services Ltd.
Glaxo Smithkline Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
HDFC Bank Ltd.
Hindustan Uniliver Ltd.
JSW Steel Limited
(in lieu of Shares hold in Jindal Vijay Nagar
Steel Limited)
Lumax Industries Limited
Panasonic Battery India Ltd.
SRG Infotech Limited
Sterlite Opticals Limited
Subros Limited
Tata Chemicals Limited
Tata Consultancy Services Limited
Visesh Infotecnics Limited
Voltas Limited
GHCL Ltd.
Archies Ltd.
Sub-Total (A)
Unquoted Shares:
Lloyd Credits Ltd.
Lloyd Aircon (P) Ltd.
Lloyd Manufacturing (P) Ltd.
Carrier Aircon Ltd.
Advance for investment in share:
Lloyd Coils LP (USA)

275.29
10
10
100
10

52.20

300,000
350
5
100

30.00
0.04
0.01
0.09

300,000
350
5
100

30.00
0.04
0.01
0.09

-

178.44

-

178.44

Sub-Total (B)

208.57

208.57

Total (A+B)

483.87

260.77

Additional Information :
1) Aggregate amount of Company's a) Market value of Quoted Investments
b) Unquoted Investments

303.40
208.57

104.84
208.57
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AS AT
31.3.2008
(Rs. in lacs)

AS AT
31.3.2007
(Rs. in lacs)

9,483.81

6,773.98

46.49

141.16

SCHEDULE - F
INVENTORIES:
(Refer Note No.-I (f) of Schedule-S)
1) Raw-materials
2)

Consumables

3)

Stock in Process

258.49

125.41

4)

Finished Goods

258.28

415.45

5)

Stock in Transit (At Cost)

1,791.46

737.76

11,838.53

8,193.77

80.71

75.04

2) Other Debts

16,054.21

10,881.30

TOTAL

16,134.92

10,956.34

24.60

1.28

124.67

110.79

1.81

1.95

6,727.74

9,899.20

213.20

361.68

9.46

41.21

7,101.49

10,416.11

TOTAL

SCHEDULE - G
SUNDRY DEBTORS:
(Unsecured considered good by the Management)
1) Debts outstanding for a
period exceeding six months

SCHEDULE - H
CASH AND BANK BALANCES:
1) Cash balance in hand
2) Balances with scheduled banks
a) in current accounts
b) in fixed deposits
c) in Fixed Deposit in Foreign A/c
d) Receipt pledged with Bank for margin money
(Including Interest)
e) interest accrued on above accounts
TOTAL
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AS AT
31.3.2008
(Rs. in lacs)

AS AT
31.3.2007
(Rs. in lacs)

58.99

55.21

187.14

521.15

3) Advance Tax & TDS

1,020.72

353.51

4) Intra Group Accounts (Net)

2,321.93

1,875.73

TOTAL

3,588.78

2,805.60

5,046.75

4,061.62

4.62

44.75

12.20

7.33

408.37

27.83

52.24

29.66

5,524.17

4,171.18

1,777.32

959.69

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax

24.82

11.00

Provision for proposed dividend

310.00

620.01

Provision for tax on proposed dividend

52.68

105.37

Provision for gratuity & leave encashment

58.44

25.46

2,223.26

1,721.53

SCHEDULE -I
LOAN & ADVANCES :
1) Security Deposits
2) Advances recoverable in cash or in
kind or for value to be recovered

SCHEDULE -J
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
1) Sundry creditors
2) Bank Overdraft
3) Unclaimed Dividend
4) Other Liabilities
5) Interest accrued but not due
TOTAL

SCHEDULE - K
PROVISIONS:
Provision for Income Tax

TOTAL
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AS AT
31.3.2008
(Rs. in lacs)

AS AT
31.3.2007
(Rs. in lacs)

SCHEDULE - L
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE:
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
1) Deferred Revenue Expenses
a) Techinical Know how Fee
Opening balance

15.00

Less: Written off during the year

15.00

TOTAL

30.00
-

15.00

15.00

-

15.00

SCHEDULE - M
OTHER INCOME:
1) Job Work
2) Interest Income
(Tax deducted at Source Rs. 1,99,539/-)
3) Interest on Foreign Currency Deposit
4) Misc.Income
5) Dividend Income

2.90
11.22

2.71
15.49

445.76
18.58
9.90

514.16
39.05
1.90

TOTAL

488.35

573.32

SCHEDULE - N
MATERIALS COST:
1) Raw materials, consumables and
components consumed:
a) Opening stocks
b) Purchases
c) Carriage Inwards
d)
2)
a)
b)
3)
a)
b)

Less: Closing stocks
Decrease/(Increase) in stocks in process:
Opening stock
Less : Closing stock
Decrease/(Increase) in finished goods:
Opening stock
Less : Closing stock

TOTAL
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6,915.15
58,869.23
114.05
65,898.43
9,530.30
125.41
258.49
415.45
258.28

56,368.13

4,104.00
44,737.08
70.32
48,911.40
6,915.15

41,996.26

(133.08)

100.30
125.41

(25.11)

157.17

226.71
415.45

(188.74)

56,392.23

41,782.40

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AS AT
31.3.2008
(Rs. in lacs)

AS AT
31.3.2007
(Rs. in lacs)

MANUFACTURING EXPENSES:
1) Wages
2) Labour Welfare
3) Repair and Maintenance
4) Power and Fuel
5) Factory Rent
6) Insurance
7) Other Charges

102.37
42.03
20.93
136.20
78.80
23.48
66.01

79.90
24.37
23.90
122.27
11.00
25.60
69.35

TOTAL

469.81

356.40

380.73
30.72
20.75
9.69
28.66
7.80
8.43
66.24
15.40
80.79
25.60
53.08
718.74
206.54

223.74
14.99
16.76
9.98
23.89
6.63
5.06
43.77
6.78
77.15
18.99
34.37
0.59
224.30
-

1,653.17

707.01

89.75
15.43
65.38
1.93
3.27
1.00
0.33

134.96
10.67
34.70
1.70
1.12
3.26
3.87

177.09

190.28

351.62
652.36
137.09

304.74
268.94
103.07

1,141.07

676.75

SCHEDULE - O

SCHEDULE- P
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:
1) Salary and Allowances
2) Contribution to Provident Fund
3) Staff Welfare
4) Rent, Rates & Taxes
5) Postage,Telegram and Telephones
6) Printing and stationery
7) Audit Fee (including service tax)
8) Legal and professional charges
9) Office maintenance
10) Travel and Conveyance
11) Motor Car Expenses
12) General Expenses
13) Loss on sale of Fixed Assets
14) Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation
15) Loss on sale of Investment
TOTAL
SCHEDULE - Q
SELLING & MARKETING EXPENSES:
1) Advertisement and publicity
2) Business Promotion
3) Carriage outwards
4) Discount
5) Commission & Incentive
6) Bad debts
7) Foreign Exhibition
8) Free Samples
TOTAL
SCHEDULE - R
FINANCE CHARGES:
1) Interest on term loans
2) Interest on working capital & Other
3) Bank charges
TOTAL
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2008
I.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and the provisions of Companies Act, 1956.
b) Revenue Recognition
i)
Income and Expenditure are recognized on accrual basis.
ii)

Sales are accounted on dispatch of products and sales value includes excise duty.

iii)

Export sales are accounted on the basis of date of bill of lading.

c) Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets except leasehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost includes freight,
duties, taxes and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation. CENVAT claim, if any, on capital
goods is reduced from the cost.
d) Depreciation:
i)
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line basis at the rates prescribed in schedule XIV to the
Companies Act, 1956.
ii)

Depreciation on assets added during the year, is calculated on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of
installation.

e) Technical Know-how:
Technical know-how fees are considered as deferred revenue expenditure and are amortized equally over a period of
ten years. During the year it is completely written-off.
f)

Inventory Valuation:
i)
Raw materials and consumables are valued at cost as per the First in First Out (FIFO) method and include(s)
customs duty wherever paid, and are net of credit availed under CENVAT scheme.
ii)

Stock in process is valued at direct cost, i.e., cost of materials and variable manufacturing expenses.

iii)

Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

iv)

Stock in transit lying in customs warehouse is valued at cost but does not include custom duty payable, however,
non-provision of duty does not affect the profit for the year.

g) Investments:
Long term Investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investment is made only if
such a decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the management.
h) Foreign currency transactions:
Income and Expenses in foreign exchange are accounted at the average rate prevailing during the month of
transaction.
Income and expenses on foreign projects are accounted at average rate for the year.
Assets purchased are capitalized at rates prevailing on the date of purchase.
Balances in foreign bank accounts, Exchange Earners Foreign Currency Account are translated into Indian
Rupees at rates prevailing at the year end.
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i)

Retirement Benefits:
The Company’s contribution to the provident fund is charged to profit and loss account.
The Company’s liability in respect of payment of gratuity is provided on accrual basis as per actuarial valuation.
Leave Encashment: The Company has provided an adhoc provision of Rs. 20 lacs as accrued liability during the year
which is subject to acturial valuation.

j)

Borrowing Cost:
Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalized as a part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

k) Taxation:
Current Tax:
The tax expenses for the year, comprising current tax and fringe benefit tax is included in determining the net profit for
the year.
A Provision is made for the current tax and fringe benefit tax based on tax liability computed in accordance with
relevant tax rates and tax laws.
Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax liabilities represent the tax effect of temporary differences substantially on account of differences in the
written down value of Fixed Assets on account of differing depreciation methods and rates and other timing differences.
l)

Expenditure during construction and on new projects
In the case of new industrial units and substantial expansion of existing units, all pre operating expenditure specifically
for the project, incurred upto the date of installation, is capitalized and added pro rata to the cost of fixed assets.

m) Management Estimation:
The financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
accounting standards, which may require management to make estimates and assumptions. These may affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements
and the reported amount of the revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual report later could differ from
these estimates.
n) Impairment of Assets:
In the opinion of the Company’s management there is no impairment to the assets to which Accounting Standard-28
“Impairment of Assets” applied requiring any revenue recognition.
o) Segment Reporting:
The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of Air-conditioning parts. The geographical segmentations are
insignificant, as exports are less than 5% of total turnover.
p) Earning Per Share:
The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s Earnings per Share (EPS) comprise the net profits after tax.
The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year.
The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive
equity shares.
q) Cash Flow Statement:
The Cash Flow statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting standard –3 issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India as required by the SEBI on Cash Flow Statement and presents cash flows by
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SCHEDULE-S (Contd....)
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company. Cash and cash equivalents presented in the cash flow
statement consists of cash in hand and demand deposits with banks as on the Balance Sheet date.
r)

Sundry Debtors/Loans & Advances:
Sundry Debtors, Creditors and other advances are subject to confirmation. The effect of the same, if any which is not
likely to be material, will be adjusted at the time of confirmation.

s) Provisions /Contingencies:
A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions
are determined based on best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date.
Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed in the Notes on Accounts.
t)

Derivative Instruments:
The Company has not entered into the derivative instruments. Forward Contract other than those entered into, to
hedge foreign currency risk on unexecuted firm commitments or of highly probable forecast transactions are treated
as foreign currency transactions and accounted accordingly. Exchange difference arising on such contracts are
recognized in the period in which they arise and premium paid/received is accounted as expenses/income over the
period of the contract.

II)

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:

1)

Contingent liability not provided for:
Particulars
a)
b)
c)

Bank Guarantees
Letters of Credit
Corporate Guarantees given
against loan taken by related parties

2)

Contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for

3)

Micro and Small Scale Business Entities:

Current Year
(Rs. In lacs)

Previous Year
(Rs. In lacs)

263.80
2788.80
5240.00

38.10
358.50
—

2700.00

2355.00

This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
has been determined to the extent such parites have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company. Accordingly, there were no interest due on the principal amounts not there was necessity to pay interest
for delayed payment in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
4.

Share Capital:
a) Authorized Capital:
During the year, the Company has increased the Authorized Capital from Rs. 35,00,00,000/- to Rs. 50,00,00,000/divided into 5,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.
b) Share Warrants:
In term of approval of shareholders of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 27, 2007
and as per the applicable provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Disclosure and Investor Protection)
Guidelines 2000, the company on September 11, 2007 has issued and allotted 50,00,000 warrants on preferential
basis to entities in promoter/non-promoters group at Rs. 225/- each to be converted into equal number of equity
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shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 215/- per share on exercise of the option of conversion by the warrant
holders within 18 months from the date of the allotment of warrants . The Company has received Rs. 1125 lacs
towards 10% of deposit against the aforesaid preferential warrants and the same is shown as Equity Share Warrants
in the Balance Sheet, pending exercise thereof.
5)

Capital work in progress:
Capital work in progress amounting to Rs. 2209.5 Lacs.

6)

The restructuring of IFCI loan had been accounted by the Company. The ZRTL (Zero Rate Term Loan) arrived from
interest overdues and NPV Loss thereon due for repaymnet in subsequent years has been accounted by the Company
during the year under review. This liability has been met from the General Reserve of the Company.

7)

Related Party Disclosures: (in which some Directors are interested)
A. Related Companies: Name of Company

Airserco Pvt. Ltd.
Fedders Lloyd Corporation Ltd
Perfect Radiators & Oil Coolers Pvt. Ltd.
PSL Engineering Pvt. Ltd.
Regal Information Technology Pvt. Ltd.

Directors Interested
Directors Interested
Directors Interested
Directors Interested
Directors Interested

B Key Management PersonnelMr. Brij Raj Punj
Mr. A.K. Roy

Chairman and Managing Director
Whole Time Director

C. Transactions with Related Companies
Transactions
Sale of goods
Reimbursement of Expenses
Advances
8)

Nature of Relationship
(Associate Co/ Subsidiary Co/Directors Interested)

Amount (Rs. In Lacs)
3664.50
2.09
2321.93

The break up of deferred tax assets and liabilities into major components at the year ended as below:
a)

Deferred Tax Liability:
Depreciation Difference

b)

Deferred Tax Asset:
Gratuity & Other Provisions
Net Deferred Tax

(Rs. in Lacs)
196.49

51.49
145.00

43

Annual Report 2007-2008

SCHEDULE-S (Contd....)
9)

Additional information pursuant to Part II of schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956:
Current Year
Amount
(Rs. In lacs)
a)
b)

c)

d)

Payment to Auditors-Audit fee
Service Tax & Cess
Expenditure in foreign currency:
Raw Material
Foreign Traveling
Exhibition & other Expenses
Earning in foreign currency
(Export of goods on FOB basis)
Interest on Fixed Deposit in Foreign Currency

8.43

5.06

3072.63
30.53
1.97

1902.92
14.24
3.67

727.68
445.76

582.10
514.16

Capacity Utilization
Current Year
Quantity (Nos.)

i)
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
ii)
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

iii)
1)
2)
3)
4)
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Previous Year
Amount
(Rs. In lacs)

Licensed Capacity
Condensing & Evaporator Coil Set
Fan coil units /Cooling Unit
All types of air conditioners up to
15 ton capacity
Sheet metal (for mfg. coil)
Parts of air conditioner/cooling
Installed Capacity
(As certified by the Management)
Condensing & Evaporator Coil Sets
Fan coil units /Cooling Unit
All types of airconditioners up to
15 ton capacity
Sheet metal (for mfg. coil)
Parts of air conditioner/cooling

Actual production
Condenser coil
Evaporator coil
Air conditioner
(RMPU/WAC/IDU/ODU)
Cooling unit

Previous Year
Quantity (Nos.)

12,25,000
10,000

12,25,000
10,000

4,02,000
3,00,000
10,000

4,02,000
3,00,000
10,000

12,25,000
10,000

12,25,000
10,000

4,02,000
3,00,000
10,000

4,02,000
3,00,000
10,000

Current Year
Quantity (Nos.)

Previous Year
Quantity (Nos.)

5,53,941
3,73,641
2,62,396

4,43,573
2,92,759
1,90,438

Nil

Nil

SCHEDULE-S (Contd....)
e)

Quantitative Information:

SALE
Item

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Condensing Coil
Evaporator Coil
Air Conditioner
(RMPU/WAC/IDU/ODU)
Sheet Metal (P&C in Mt.)
Parts, Components &
Spares & Others

Current Year
Qty.
Value
(Nos.) (Rs. In Lacs)

Previous Year
Qty
Value
(Nos.)
(Rs. In Lacs)

5,59,549
3,80,022
2,62,805

3200.51
2059.48
20810.30

440,898
287,125
190,129

2284.59
1390.36
12959.38

1,42,232.40
-

39945.70
485.46

95,918
-

32047.03
403.01

All the values mentioned above are without excise duty. The excise duty charged on sale amounts to Rs. 715.02 lacs
in sales captive consumptions are included. Quantities of condenser coils and evaporator coils are in tonnage for
production and sale.
f) Closing Stock

1.
2.
3.
4.

Condensing Coil
Evaporator Coil
Air conditioners
Sheet Metal & Others
(P&C in Mt)

Current Year
Qty.
Value
(Nos.)
(Rs. In lacs)
5,919
106.03
4,001
81.74
481
39.65
13,779
30.87

Previous Year
Qty.
Value
(Nos.)
(Rs. In lacs)
11,527
169.04
10,382
144.78
890
86.80
7
14.84

g) Consumption of Raw Materials, Components, Spares & Consumables (Used in Manufacturing) and
others.

Name of the Item

Current Year
Qty
Value
(Kg.)
(Rs. In Lacs)
982212
944225
247087

3455.06
1636.36
6450.38
44850.41

Previous Year
Qty
Value
(Kg.)
(Rs. In lacs)

1.
2.
3.
4.

Copper Tube
Aluminum Foil
Compressors
Others

h)

Consumption of Raw Material, Components Consumables, Spares Parts & others
Current Year
(Rs. In lacs)

Indigenous
Imported

47317.98 (83.94%)
9050.15 (16.06%)

814,614
793,163
89,916

2598.78
1469.09
2832.35
34882.17

Previous Year
(Rs. In lacs)
33573.77 (80.35%)
8208.63 (19.65%)
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SCHEDULE-S (Contd....)
i) Value of Import of Raw Material, Components, spares & Consumables made during the year on CIF
Basis
Current Year
(Rs. In Lacs)
Raw Material
(Including HI – Sea Purchase)
Capital Goods
j)

Previous Year
(Rs. In lacs)

9324.69

8180.45

575.41

655.96

Managerial Remuneration paid to Managing Director and Whole Time Director
Current Year
(Rs. In Lacs)

Previous Year
(Rs. In Lacs)

Salary
Value of Perquisites

38.47
12.45

7.20
NIL

Total

50.92

7.20

k)

Balances of sister concerns are subject to reconciliation & confirmation

l)

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Earnings per share has been computed as under:
Current Year
Profit after Taxation (Rs. Lacs)
Number of Ordinary Shares
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share
(Face Value Rs.10/-per share)

5271.70
31000260
17.01

Previous Year
4295.60
30999860
13.86

10) Previous year figures have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary.
11) In the opinion of the Board, the current assets are approximately of the value as stated, if realized in the ordinary
course of business. The provision for depreciation and for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the
amount reasonably considered necessary. Income accrued has been accounted for in the books.
12) Schedules “A” to “S” form an integral part of accounts and are duly authorized.

Refer to our Report of even date.
For SURESH C. MATHUR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(Brijesh C. Mathur)
Partner
M.No. 83540
Place: New Delhi
Date: August 27, 2008
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
LLOYD ELECTRIC & ENGINEERING LIMITED

Mukat Sharma
Chief
Financial Officer

Anita K. Sharma
A. K. Roy
K.Lall
Company
Whole Time Director
Secretary
Director

Brij Raj Punj
Chairman &
Managing Director

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2008

A.

B

C

Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Net Profit before tax & Extra-ordinary items
Adjustments:
Add:
Depreciation
Misc.Expenses written off
Interest Paid
Loss on sale of Investment
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Less:
Interest Income
Dividend Income
Profit on sale of Investment
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for :
Inventories
Trade & other receivables
Trade & other payables
Cash generated from operations
Direct tax paid
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purhase of fixed assets
Sale of fixed assets
Net Purchase of Investments
Loss on sale of Investment
Dividend Received
Interest received
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Cash Flow from Financial Activities:
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing
Proceeds from Issue of Share capital
Proceeds from Issue of Share warrant
Interest paid
Dividend paid
Dividend tax
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

923.37
15.00
1,003.98
206.54
-

(456.97)
(9.90)
-

(3,644.76)
(5,294.54)
1,385.97

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Net increase/ decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Refer to our Report of even date.
For SURESH C. MATHUR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(Brijesh C. Mathur)
Partner
M.No. 83540

Year ended
31st March,2008
Rs. in Lacs

Year ended
31st March,2007
Rs. in Lacs

4,958.53

5,081.20

848.65
15.00
573.68
0.59

2,148.90
7,107.43

(466.87)
6,640.55

(7,553.34)
(912.78)
(637.08)
(1,549.87)

1,437.92
6,519.12

(529.65)
(1.90)
-

(531.55)
5,987.57

(2,727.58)
(5,465.21)
139.67

(8,053.13)
(2,065.56)
(173.26)
(2,238.82

(5,533.85)
(223.10)
(206.54)
9.90
456.97
(5,496.61)

(6,539.44)
0.75
1.90
529.65
(6,007.14)

4,336.20
0.02
1,125.00
(1,003.98)
(620.01)
(105.37)
3,731.86

4,915.49
4,500.39
(573.68)
(270.03)
(37.87)
8,534.30

(3,314.62)
(3,314.62)
10,416.11
7,101.49

288.34
288.34
10,127.77
10,416.11

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
LLOYD ELECTRIC & ENGINEERING LIMITED

Mukat Sharma
Chief
Financial Officer

Anita K. Sharma
Company
Secretary

A. K. Roy
Whole Time
Director

K.Lall
Director

Brij Raj Punj
Chairman &
Managing Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 27, 2008
AUDITOR'S REPORT
We have examined the above Cash Flow Statement of Lloyd Electric & Engineering Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2008. The statement has been prepared
by the company in accordance with the requirements of clause 32 of the listing agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges and is based on and is in agreement
with the corrosponding Profit & Loss Account and Balance Sheet of the company.
for Suresh C. Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Place: New Delhi
Dated: August 27, 2008

( Brijesh C. Mathur)
Partner
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Statement Pursuant to Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT & COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE
I. REGISTRATION DETAILS
Registration No.

1

Balance Sheet Date

3
Date

1

2

8

4

0 3
Month

1
0
Year

State Code

1

7

8

II. CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Public Issue

N

I

L

Rights Issue

N

I

L

Bonus Issue

N

I

L

Private Placement

N

I

L

III.POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUND (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Total Liabilities

5

0

7

9

2

8

8

Total Assets

5

0

7

9

2

8

8

Paid up Capital
4
(Including Equity Share Warrants)

2

2

5

6

7

Reserves & Surplus

3

0

8

7

7

8

8

Deferred Tax

3

3

0

0

5

Secured Loans

1

5

3

5

9

2

8

N

I

L

4

8

3

8

7

N

I

L

SOURCES OF FUNDS :

Unsecured Loans
APPLICATION OF FUNDS :
Net Fixed Assets (including
(Capital Work in Progress)

1

9

3

9

2

7

4

Investments

Net Current Assets

3

0

9

1

6

2

7

Misc Expenditure

N

I

L

Accumalated Losses/ Profit

IV.PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Turnover & Other Income

6

6

9

8

0

Total Expenditure

6

0

7

7

1

7

5

+/- Profit/ Loss before Tax + 6 2 1 8 0
(Please tick appropriate box + for profit, - for Loss)

5

+/-Profit/ Loss after Tax

+

5

2

7

1

7

3

Earning per Share (Rs.)

1

Proposed Dividend @%

1

0

1

8

7

9

.

0

V. GENERIC NAME OF THREE PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS/ SERVICES ON THE COMPNAY
(AS PER MONETARY TERMS)
Item Code No.
( ITC Code)

8

4

1

5

9

0

For Suresh C. Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
(Brijesh C. Mathur)
Partner
Place: New Delhi
Dated: August 27, 2008
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Product Description

CONDENSOR& EVAPORATOR
COILS, AIRCONDITIONERS &
PARTS THEREOF

For and on behalf of the Board
Lloyd Electric & Engineering Ltd.
Mukat Sharma
Chief
Finance Officer

Anita K. Sharma
Company
Secretary

A. K. Roy
Whole Time
Director

K. Lall
Director

Brij Raj Punj
Chairman &
Managing Director

LLOYD ELECTRIC & ENGINEERING LIMITED
Regd. Office: A-146, (B&C) RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi Distt., Alwar, Rajasthan - 301019
ATTENDANCE SLIP
(For attending the 21st Annual General Meeting)
PLEASE FILL THE ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL
NO. OF SHARES HELD ..................................

FOLIO NO. ......................................

I/We record my / our presence at the 21st Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Monday, 29th day of September 2008 at
4.00 p.m. at A-146, (B&C) RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi Distt., Alwar, Rajasthan - 301019
Name and Address of the Shareholder (in Block Letters) : ....................................................................................................
Name of the Proxy .....................................................................................................................................................................
(to be filled only when Shareholder is appointing proxy)
SIGNATURE OF THE SHAREHOLDER / PROXY

TEAR HERE

LLOYD ELECTRIC & ENGINEERING LIMITED
Regd. Office: A-146, (B&C) RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi Distt., Alwar, Rajasthan - 301019
PROXY FORM
I/We .................................................................................................... of ....................................................................................
in the district of ................................................ being a member/member(s) of Lloyd Electric & Engineering Limited, hereby
appoint ........................................................ of .................................................... in the district of .......................... or hereby
failing him ........................................................................................................... in the district of ...................................... a s
my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 21st Annual General Meting of the Company to be held on Monday,
29th day of September 2008 at 4.00 p.m. at A-146, (B&C) RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi Distt., Alwar, Rajasthan - 301019
Signed this ..................................................... day of ............................... 2008
Affix a
Re.1
Revenue
Stamp

Signature .........................................
Notes: The proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped, complete and signed and must be deposited at the Regd.
office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the aforesaid meeting. The proxy need not be a
member of the Company.
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At the cutting edge of
heat transfer technology

LLOYD ELECTRIC & ENGINEERING LIMITED
159, Okhla Industrial Estate, Phase - III, New Delhi -110020 (INDIA)
Phone No.: +91 11 40627200/300
Fax: +91 11 41609909
email: investor.relation@lloydengg.com

